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S5TATE OF OO0 o T o _ 743 East State Street .

- * Athens Mall, Suite B
OFFICE OF THE AUDITczg 7 ] " Athens, Ohio 45701
Jim PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Telephone 740-594-3300

‘ 800-441-1389
Facsimile 740-594-2110

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

East Guemsey Local School District
Guernsey County

229 National Road

Old Washington, Chio 43768

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the East Gusrnsey Local
School District, Guermnsey County, (the School District} as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed
in the table of contents. Thase general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the School
District's management. Our responsibility is to express_an opinion on these general-purpose financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disciosures in the financial
statements. Anaudit also includes assessing the accouniing principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentatlon We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the East Guernsey Local School District, as of June 30, 1988, and the
results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds for
the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Governiment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 5,
1999 on our consideration of the School District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinlon on the general-purpose financlal statements
of the School District, faken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of federal awards receipts and
expendituresis presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Managementand
Budget Circular A-133, Audiis of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a
required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in ocur opinion, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

November 5, 1999

East Guernsey Lecal School District 1
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Assets and Other Debits:
Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash
and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
With Fiscal Agents
investments
Receivables:
Property & Other Local Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Interfund Receivable
Inventory Held for Resale
Materials/Supplies Inventory
Prepald Items
Restricted Equity in Pooled
Cash and Cash Equivaients
Fived Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Cther Pebits:

Amount Available in Pebt Senvice
Fund for Retirement of
Generaf Obligation Debt

Amount to be Provided from
General Govermnment Resources

Total Assets and Other Debits:

East Guernsey Local School District

Combined Balance Sheet
All Fund Types and Account Groups
For the Fiscal Year Endad June 30, 1999

Governmental Fund Types

General Special Debt Capltal
Fund Revenue Senvice Projects
$1,849,133 $151,868 $394,309 $522.621
0 0 0 0
0 0 v 0
2,465 697 39,054 294,977 0
1,320 1,226 0 0
17,808 28,044 0 287,376
330,454 o 0 0
0 0 ¢ a
34,948 0 o 0
52,746 3,058 0 0
75,007 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
4] 0 0 0
a a a a
0 o] 0 0

$4,828,211 $224,150

$689,376

$809,997



-—— Propriefary Fund Types —

Enterprise Internal
Bervice

$48,315 %0
0 858,814

o] 1)

0 0

0 0
22,867 0

0 0

7,520 0
1,368 0
2719 0

0 0
152,927 0
{143,693) 0
a a

0 0

$20,021

$858,814

East Guernsey Local School District

— Fiduciary — Account Groups - - --
General General Totals
Trust and Fixed Long Term {Memorandum
Agency Assets Obligation Oniy)

$63,401 %0 $0 $3,027,737
0 0 0 858,814

44 537 o 0 44 537

0] 0 0 2,800,728

0 0 0 2,548

0 0 0 357,095

0 0 ] 330,454

0 0 0 7.520

1] 0 0 36,312

0 0 0 58,523

0 0 0 75,007

0 9,377,965 0 9,530,892
0 4] 0 {143,693)

e] a 488,065 488,065

(¢] 0 1,389,097 1,385,097
$107,938 $9,377,965 $1,878162  $18,864,634

(Continued)



Liahilties, Fund Equity
and Other Credits:

Liabitities:

Accounts Payable

Contracts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefits
Compensated Ahsences Payable
Interfund Payable
Intergovernmental Payable

Long Term Pension Obligation
Deferred Revenue

Due o Students

Accrued Interest Payable

Claims Payable

Capital Leases Paysble

Energy Conservation Loan Payable
General Obligation Bonds Payable

Tetal Liabilities:

Fund Equity and Other Credits:

Investment in
General Fixed Assets
Contributed Capital
Retained Eamings:
Unreserved
Fund Balances:
Raservegd:
Reserved for Encumbrances
Reserved for Inventory
Reserved for Endowrments
Reserved for Property Taxes
Reserved for Budget Stabilization
Unresenved:
Unreservad, Undesignated

Total Fund Equity
and Other Credits:

Total Liahilities, Fund Equity
and Other Credits

Combined Balance Shest

Al Fund Types and Account Groups
For the Fiscal Yaear Endad June 30, 1999

— Govemmmental Fund Types
General Special Debt Capital
Fund Revenue Senvice Projects
$45,267 $14,645 $0 T s
0 0 0 116,108
548,310 32,941 0 D
10,742 t] d] 0
0 10,391 0 320,063
119,305 5,140 0 0
0 0 0 0
1,736,412 27,536 200,311 0
0 o] 0 0
1,068 a 0 0
0 4] 0 a
0 0 0 0
260,000 0 0 0
v "0 0 0
2,721,194 90,663 200,311 436,171
o 0 ] 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
313,708 35,816 0 204717
34,948 0 ] 0
g 0 0 o]
730,285 11,518 84,666 ¢
75,007 0 0 0
953,070 86,163 394,300 169,109
2,107,017 133,497 489,065 373,828
$689,376 $809,997

$4,828 211

See accompanying Nofes to the Genereal Purpose Financial Staternents.

East Guemnsay Local School District

$224.150




—— Proprietary Fund Types —— -— Fiduciary — —— Account Groups -
General General Totais
Enterprise Internal Trust and Fhed tong Term (Memorandum
Senvice Agency Assets Obligation Only)
(Continued)
$0 $8,040 $0 $0 $0 $87,052
0 0 o 0 0 $116,108
18,801 a o] o 1) 601,052
7,091 v 0 0 359,203 377,036
0 0 0 0 0 330,454
12,187 0 0 0 0 136,722
D 0 o ) 60,101 80,101
5,365 0 0 ] 0 1,969,624
0 0 54,747 0] 1] 54,747
¢} 0 0 4] 4] 1,088
0 105,558 v] (4] a 105,558
0 ) 0 0 8,841 8,641
0 1] 0 0 0 260,000
0 0 0 0 1,450,217 1,450,217
44 444 113,568 54,747 0 1 ,878.162 $5,539,280
0 0 0 9,377,965 0] 9,377,965
144,920 0 1] 1] 1] 144,920
(99,343) 745,216 0 0 0 645,873
1] 0 0 o] 0 554,242
0 0 e] 0 1] 34,046
0 0 49,477 o] 0 49,477
0 Q 0 0 0] 836,459
0 0 0 0 0 75,007
0 o] 3,714 0 0 1,606,455
45577 745,218 53,191 9,377,965 0 $13,325,354
$107,938 $9,377,965 $18,864,634

$90,021 $858,814

East Guemnsey Local School District

$1,878,162




Revenues (Govemmental):
Property and Other Local Taxes
Imtergovemments
Interest
Tuition and Fees
Rent
Extracuricular Activities
Gifts and Donations
Misceflansous

Total Revenues:

Expenditures:

Instruction:

Regular

Special

Vacational

Other
Support sendces:

Pupils

Instructionat Staff

Board of Education
Administration

Fiscal
Qperation/Maintenancs of Plant
Pupil Transportation
Central
Non nstructional Sendces
Extracumicular scthities

Capital Qutlay

Dabt Sendce - Principal
Debt Sendce - Interest

Total Expenditures:

Excess of Revenues Dver
{Under) Expenditures:

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers in

Procesds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Operating Transfers Qut

Tated Other Financing Sources (Uses)

BExcess of Revanues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances {Deficits) at Beginning
of Year
increase in Reserva for Inventory

Fund Balance at End of Year

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expanditures and Chan

ges in Fund Balances

Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Govemmental Fund Types Fiduclary
— — . T - o= Totals
General Special Debt Caphtal Expendable (Memorandum
Fund Revenue Sepvice Projects Trust Cnly)
$1,825,255 $29,369 $217,708 $0 $0 $2,072,332
4,655,137 299,949 26,269 437,606 T 5,518.063
149,845 1,798 1,414 4 153,061
7,856 0 0 B o o 67,856
9,003 o 0 ) 0 9,003
950 188,227 o 250 0 169,427
5 10,188 o 3,523 225 13,841
12,400 200 o g 0 12,800
6,720,541 609,731 243 977 C az795 2 soiTams
2,641,840 97,944 ) 100,835 o 2,840,719
380,714 218,541 0 0 D 599,255
249,727 0 0 0 0 249,727
10,824 o 0 0 200 11,024
265,914 71,923 0 0 o 357,837
194,831 50,009 o 40,537 0 285,377
15,025 o o o o 15,025
709,552 16,471 o 0 o 726,023
196,438 a78 8,009 m 0 203,323
556,715 14,856 g 1,541 o 573,112
67,511 ) o 0 0 667,511
782 - 0 0 o o 782
4,285 o o ) o 4,285
21,580 103,556 0 [+ I ] 195,186
o 8.812 0 151,020 0 160,832
3,965 o 115,000 o o 118,965
18,861 o 80,518 0 0 97,379
6,026,672 584,030 201527 283988 200 7.108.362
[ — - — ———mm T {—— L [ il
693,869 25,701 42,450 148,862 29 910,811
a o 0 51,415 g 51,415
7148 o 0 o a 7.148
(51.415) o 8 - . o {51,415)
—— ——— e T —._ -
{44,267) 0 o 51,415 7,148
549,602 25,701 42,450 200,277 29 918,069
— r—— . —_ e e gy SV AR 133
1,452,855 107,796 448,815 173,549 213 2,181,028
4,560 0 0 a o 4,560
2,107,017 $133,497 $489,085 $373,526 T " 83,103,647

See accomipanying Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements.

East Guernsey Local School District




Combingd St t of Ry N ditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Budget vs. Actual (Budget Basis)
Governmantal Fund Types and Expandable Trust Fund
For the Fiacal Year Ended June 30, 1999

-Ganaral Fund- - e ——snnm - Epacial Raverua Furd—-—vus r—— e
Varfarice Vinanos
Revised Favarable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
- - g T e L R e R R R T e R e e i .
Ravenues:

Taxas 31,767,448 $1,791,450 2 330,500 $28,508 (3994}
Intargovarmmentsl 4,387 857 4,841,155 253,548 379,536 385,508 (8,530}
Interest 102,300 149,845 4T 548 - 1,135 1,790 663
Tuilon and Fees 36,076 88,745 30,688 Ju] ] - [\ I
Rert 18,100 8.093 (1,007 [ - 0 ]
Extracigricular Activitios Q o) 0 168,890 168,100 (Ta0y
Gifts and Donations. o) 5 5 11,300 10,188 1.1
Miscakaneous 2700 12,400 BT . 200 200 ]

Y oo T T S e wrll
Total Reveruas: £.330,231 8,670,693 340,482 581,561 . 579,608 {11,863
- = L = ERE L iy P A e
Bparcitures:

Current

Instruction:

Raguiar 2585241 2568,018 17,222 111,983 107.750 4233

Special 378,563 378,451 M2 250435 218,249 34,188

\iocationat 253,192 252,522 -aTe - B+ I R -0

Other 25,040 25014 28 e a o

Buppart servicas; -

Pupils 317,818 317,081 TI7 89,420 B4,049 5371

Instructional Staff 200,712 199,429 12865 59,353 48,604 9,749

Beard of Education 15305 14,760 545 0 o 0

Adminstration 734,986 728,915 5,061 18,489 18,800 1,889

Frscal 198,876 195,712 1,164 1,050 878 172

OperationMaintenancs of Plant 830,439 516,138 14,303 22160 17,080 5,080

Pugll Trarspartation 751,362 739,735 11657 Q b} [+]

Cantral 1288 782 506 a a g

Non-Instructional Serdces 4285 4285 L] o 1] ]

Extracuricular activities 93,755 w2728 1,017 125,026 © 18310 8716
Capital Qutlay 38,559 38,559 o a512 8812 o
Debt Serdee - Principal 45,000 45,000 i+ o 4] 0

- Interest 15,223 15,323 D ] 0 o
Total Exparcitres: B,385.754 6,330,458 55206 687,728 518,332 #9356
Excess of Revenues Over
(Undar) Expenditures: {55,523) 340235 395,758 (88,187 (38,634) 57,533
—_— - - T S gk TSl v
Other Flnancing Sources {Uses)

Oparating Transfars in 0 v] 4] 4] 1] D

Proceeds from Sale of Fixad Assels 1] 7,148 T.,148 "] 0 o

Achancas In o a i+] b+ 10,391 10,381

Cperating Transtars Out (51,415) (51,418) D 0 o 0

Advances Out 0 (330,454) {330.454) o 0 a
Tatal Other Finanding Saurces (Uses) (51,415) (374.721) (323,308) Q 10,381
Ebacess of Revenues and Other

Fmancing Scurces Ovar (Under)

Expendburas and Other Uses (108,938} (34 488} 72,452 {96,167) (28,243) 87924
Fund Balances at Baginning of Year 1,209,637 1,209,837 [ 80,011 80,011 o
Prigr Yr Encumbrances Appeopeiatad 289,402 289,402 s 40,948 49,948 5]
Fund Balance at End of Year $1,482,101 51,554,563 $72,452 §33.762 101716 e

e

(Continved)
Sag accompanying Nofes fo the General Purpose Financlal Statements.

East Guemsey Local School District



Comblned Statement of Revenuas, Expenditures and Ch
in Fund Balances - Budget vs. Actual {(Budget Basis)
Govemmarntal Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1958

e Peht Sarvice Fund---.

Revenues:
Taves
Integovermmertal

Tuitior; and Fees

Rent

Baracuricuar Activities
Gilts and Donations
Misca¥ancous

Total Revenues:

Non-instructional Servicas
Bxdracumicdar activities
Capital Qutiay
Dett Serdes - Principal
- Interast

Total Expanditures:

Excess of Reveruas Over
{(Undar) Exparxiitres:

Cther Finarcing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In
Pracaads from Sale of Fhead Assats
Achances n
Oparatfing Transfers Out
Advances Cut

Tedal Othar Financing Sourtes (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Saurces Cver (Under)
Expandtures and Othar Uses

Fund Balances &t Beginning of Yesar
Prior ¥y Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at End of Year

East GuamseyLocal School District

Revised

Actual

(Urfavorabla}

$200,000
22,600

O00CoOQ

3204627

[-N=-N-N- W]

— e

222 000

230396

o ao

-~
DODOOQ§OUOO

115,000
80,518

oocoQ

2
ooooom%ooco

oQoo

0000 CUOQLA0000

203,318

E

16,882

(=R N-N-Na]

[-R=N=0=-]

D
o
[}
355,238
a
0

s

-
cood

§OUDQOOO§D

-
F Y
uog

(=)

o

18,682

365,033

28,389

$363,715

304,402




B ble Trust Flng—-—-—-w-e-ee —

Variance

Revised Favarabie
Budget Actual (Untavarabile)
$0 0 30
0 I+ 1]
10 4 i)
Q [+] ]

a 4] &

Q [+] g
200 -l 25
1] i) [+]
210 ol 19
o [+} o

0 a o

4] a ¢}
200 200 [»]
i+ 4] a

a 0 q

a 0 [+

1] 1] o

4] s} °

G 0 ]

4] 0 o

[ o] [}

¢ 0 0

o a [+]

° a 0

o o D

0 o} 1]
200 200 a
10 29 18
o 4 a

o o 4]

a o o

a s} 0

¢ a o

o) a 0
10 s 19
213 213 4]
+] 4 q
23 S22 $19
— o e

East Guernsey Local School District

Ravisad Favorabie
Biigat Actual {Usfavorable)
- st . W i twaT et -
$2,025,583 3838
5,187,562 (415,188}
163,081 49,116
86,745 30,669
2,093 (1,007
168,360 {10,540)
132,841 75| -
12,800 9,700
o BT e e e i e e L
7.838,935 (345,154)
- P, -
2,903,630 2,877,106 26,424
628,998 504,700 34,268
253,192 252522 870
. 25240 25214 O —— e e
407,238 401,130 8,108
386,602 289,567 67,035
15,305 14,760 545
T53,455 TA5515 7,940 _
205,728 202599 3,127
654,140 634,757 19,383
751,382 735,735 11,857
1,208 782 506
4285 4,295
218,681 208,048 9,933
415,830 401,807 14,223
180,000 160,000 R
95,841 95,841 Q
_ - AEE o Mo EEase s ey . e i
7,881,043 7.649,160 231,875
e - = i g o aa e --
101,048 (12,233} (113279
0 51,418 51,415
0 7,148 1,148
o 330484 330,454
{51.415) (51.415) a
1) (330,454} (320,454}
= L —————————T —_— =T ’ Ferte et
(51,415) 7.148 58,563
49,831 (5,085) {54,716)
1900877 1,900,877 ]
356917 356,917 a
$2.307425 $2,252,709 ($54,716)
JESGR—— S e




Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Ghanges in Fund Equity
Proprietary Fund Types and Non-Expendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1983

Proprietary Fund Types Fiduclary
Entemri'.; 7 Intemnal Non-Emendabie
Sanvice Trust
Operating Revenues: 7
Sales $157 401 $0 $o
Charges for Services 0 485,511 0
Interest 0 0 2,875
Contributions and Donations 0 0 200
Refund of Prior Years Expense ' o 1,879 0
Total Operating Revenues: 157,401 ‘ 497390 3175
Operating Expenses:
Salaries 66,0498 0 0
Fringe Benefits 43,340 7128 0
Purchased Senvices 2,301 89,728 0
Materials and Supplies 14,201 0 0
Cost of Sales 161,961 0 0
Depreciation 1,380 0 o)
Claims 0 534 455 0
Other Operating Expenses 1,062 0 3,000
Tetal Operaling Expenses: - 321,243 831,311 3,000
Operating Income (Loss): (163,842) (133,921 175
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses): -
Federal Donated Commodities 41,252 0 0
Interest 2915 45895 0
Faderal and State Subsidies 139,141 0 0
Total Non-Oper. Revenues (Expenses) 183,308 45,855 0
Net Income (Loss) 19,466 (88,026) 175
Retained Eamings/Fund Balance {118,800) 833,242 52,774
{Deficit) at Beginning of Year —_——— — —_—
Retained Eamings/Fund Balance
{Deflcit) at End of Year {99,343) 745,216 52,549
Contributed Capital at Beginning of Year 144,920 0 0
Capital Contributions Puring the Year 0] Q 0
Contributed Caphal at End of Year 144,920 0 0
Total Fund Equity at End of Year $45.577 B $745.216 $52,849
] ry

Ses accompanylng Noles to the General Purpose Financlal Staternents.

East Guaernsay Local School District

.= .- Totals

N '(Memorandum
Only)

$157,401
495,511
2,875
300
1,879
857,966
96,958
50,468
92,029
14,201
161,961
1,380
534,455
4,062
855,554
(297 588)
41252
48,810
139,141
228,203
(68,385)

767,207

B9g 822

144,820
144,920

$843,742

10



Operating Revenues:

Sales

Charges for Senvices

Interest

Contributions and Donations
Refund of Prior Year Expense

Total Operating Revenues:

Qperating Expenses:
Salaries

Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Claims

Other

Capital Outlay

Total Operating Expenses:
Operating Income (Loss).
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Non-Operating Revenues
Interest
Federai and State Subsidies
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses):

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenses:

Fund Equlty at Beginning of Year
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Equity at End of Year

See accompanying Notes to the General Purpose Financlal Sfatements.

East Guemsey Local School District

Combined Staterment of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Fund Equity - Budget vs. Actual (Budget Basis)

Proprietary Fund Types and Mon-Expendable Trust Funds

——meree—— ENtE RIS O

Broprietary Fund Types

Faor the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

——Internal Serdce—-ere—r

Variance Varfance
Revised Favorable Revised Faworable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
150,850 157,401 $6,551 0 )
o 0 $0 430,000 495,511
0 0 $0 T 0 ) 0
0 0 $0 0 0
0 0 0 i 0 1,879
150,850 157,401 6,551 430000 497,300
5,892 84,225 1,667 0 0 0
52,009 44,868 7.141 0 o 0
3,533 2948 585 84,500 95,525 (925)
142,245 137,089 5,156 0 0 0
0 0 0 624,900 548,018 78,884
1,070 1,062 ) o 0 0
2,095 1,114 981 0 o 0
206,844 281,308 15,538 " 718,500 641541 T7.959
(145,994) (123,905) 22,089 {289,500) (144,151) 145,349
0 2915 2,915 45,000 45,895 895
134,300 116,274 (18,026) - 0 0 0
—— - N EET= s ot W o wrweyewr = <l SR e 3 WVl -
134,300 118,189 (15,111) 45,000 45,895 885
S — e — - e o e
{11,684) (4,718) 8,978 (244,500) {98,258) 146,244
45,820 45,820 ) 957,068 857,068 o
1,393 1,393 0 : o 0 )
$35.519 $42.497 $8,978 $712,568 sesesiz $146,244
{Continued)
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Operating Revenues:

Bales

Charges for Services

Interest

Contributions and Donations
Refund of Prior Year Expense

Total Operating Revenues:

Operating Expenses:
Safaries

Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Claims

Other

Capital Qutlay

Total Operating Expenses:

Operating Income (Loss):

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Noh-Operating Revenues
Interest
Federal and State Subsidies

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Excess of Revenuas Over (Under)
Expenses:

Fund Equity af Beginning of Year
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Equity at End of Year

East Guemsey Local School District

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Equity - Budget vs. Actual (Budget Basis)
Proprietary Fund Types and Non-Expendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

{Continued)
Fiduciary Fund Type —em———— ..o o s Tolals —
Naon-Expendable Trust: : — ~{Memorandum Only)
Varlance Vatiance
Revised Favorable Reavised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
- R " TR e o e & e
o 0 150,850 157 401
i} o} 430,000 495,511
2,800 3,522 2,800 3,522
300 300 300 300
0 [} 0 1,879
- e TN TR b S S T
3,100 3,822 583,950 558,
0 g $95,892 $94,205 $1,667
Q 1} 52,009 44,368 7.141
Q 1] 08,133 28,473 (340)
G Q 142,245 137,068 5156
[} Q 524,900 546,016 758,684
3,000 3,000 4,070 4,082 8
4} 9 2,095 1114 881
T em L LSTTSERTER L b T B Seele RO s e o s e e L T T
3,000 3,000 0 1,019,344 925,847 93,497
. T e e e B e e e Fer s R S A P
100 822 722 (435,394) (267,234 168,160
4] o} 0 45,000 48,810 3.810
0 ] 0 134,300 116,274 (18,0286)
0 0 I e N (14,218)
100 822 i 722 (256,004) {102,150) 153,044
52,1217 §2,127 a 1,055,015 1,055,015 a
0 .o ) 0 1,393 1,393 o]
$52,227 352,948 $722 $800,314  $954.258  §153,844
-
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Combined Statement of Cash Flows
Al Proprietary Fund Types and Non-Expendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Proprietary Fund Types~————— . ~—Fiduclary— - Totals
Internal Nonexpendable (Memorandum
Enterprise Sendca Trust Only)

Increase (Decreass} in Cash and Cash Equivalants:

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: - T
Cash Received frem Custamaers $157,401 $0 %0 $157,401
Cash Received from Con{rbutions 0 o] 300 300
Cash Received from Quasi-Extemal
Transactions with Other Funds v] 495 511 L] 495 511
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Sendces (138,394) {95,525) a (233,919)
Cash Payments io Employees for Senvices (94,225) o} 0 (94,225)
Cash Payments for Employee Benefits (44,868) o Q (44,858)
Casgh Payments for Claims Qg (546,016) 0 (646,018)
Cash Payments for Scholarships 0 o (3,000) (3,000)
Other Non-Cperating Revenues ad 1,878 o 1,872

Net Cash {Used for) Oparsting Activities (120,086) (144,151} (2,700} {266,937}

Cash Flows from Man-capital Fitancing Activities: . .

QOperating Granis Received 116,274 o o 116,274
Net Brovided by Non-capital Financing Activities 116,274 ) 0 116,274
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Interest on Investments 2915 458485 3,522 52,332
Net Cash Provided by lnvesting Activities 2915 45,895 3522 52,332
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (897) (98,256) 822 (98,331}
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 47,212 957,070 B2,12Y 1,056,409
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $46,315 $858.814 $52,949 $958,078

E R e~ Sl T B

Reconcifiation of Operating Income (Loss) to Met

Cash Previded by (Used for) Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) (3163,842) (123,921) 175 (297,588)

AdJustments to Recancile Operaling Income {Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Depreciation 1,380 o o 1,380
Donated Commedities Used During Year 41,252 o o] 41,252
Interest a ] (3.522) (3,522)
Changes in Agsets and Liabilities:
Decrease in Accrued [nterest Recsivable 0 [+ 647 647
Increass in Frepaid [tems (128) v} 0 {128)
[recrease in Inventory Held for Resals T25 o] o] T25
Increase in Materials and Supplies Inventary -— (76} 4] 0 {re)
Increase in Accounts Payable 0 1,33 0 1,331
Increase in Accrued Wages 2,256 o 0 2,256
Increase in Compensated Absences Payable 517 0 0 517
Decrease in Intergovernmental Payable (1,400) 0 0 (1,400)
Decrease in Claims Payable [} (11,561) 0 {11,561)
Decresse in Deferred Revenue 7o) 4] o] (70}
Tolal Adjustmants 43,756 (10,230} {2,875) 30,651
Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities {$120,086) ($144,151) ($2,700) ($266,937)
AEERW R =EEE==zo=x ERTCmEE=E

Ses accompanying Nofes to the Genaral Purpose Financial Stalements.
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NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

1-DE IPTION O CHOOL ICT

The East Guernsey Local School District was formed in 1976 with the consolidation of Zane Trace Local
Schoals and Madison Consalidated Local Schools. The School District is located in southeastern Ohio and
encompasses the eastemn 45% of Guemnsey County.

The Easi Guemsey Local School District operates under a iocally elected five member board form of
government and provides educational services as authorized and mandated by state and federal agencies.
The School Board controls the School District’s five instructional/support facilities, which are staffed by 57
classified employees, 81 certified teaching employees, and six administrators, who provide services to
approximately 1,251 students and other community members.

A.  Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity may consist of; a) the primary govemment, b) component units which
are legally separate organizations which are fiscally dependent on the School District or for which
the School District is financially accountabie, and ¢) governmental organizations for which the
primary govemment is not financially accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their
financial relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. In this School District, no separate
govemmental units meet the criteria for inclusion as a component unit.

The East Guernsey Local School District provides more than instruction to its students. These
additional services include student guidance, extracurricular activities, educational media and care
and upkeep of grounds and huildings. The operation of each of these activities is directly controlied
by the Board of Education through the budgetary process. The School District operations form the
oversight unit and are included as part of the reporting entity.

B. Potential Component Units - Excluded

The following potential component units have been excluded from the School District’s financial
staternents because the Disirict is not financially accountable for these organizations, nor are these
entities for which the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes.

The Guemnsey-Monroe-Noble Educational Service Center is affiliated with the East Guemsey Local
School District as mandated by Ohio Revised Code and provides services with funds received for
that purpose from state and federal funding scurces. Other services are provided on a contractual
basis. The GMNESC is a separate body politic and board members are elected independently of
any School District relationships.

The East Guemnsey Local Schoo! Disfrict has no involvement in the selection of employees,
budgeting, or management of the GMNESC. The Guernsey-Monroe-Noble Educational Service
Center is not considered part of the Disfrict and its operations are not included within the
accompanying financial statements.

East Guernsey Local School Disfrict 14



NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1993

Beginning with the 1991-82 school year, the District entered into an agreement with the Guemsey-
Monroe-Noble Tri-County Community Action Committee to house two of its Head Start program
units in the Quaker City Elementary and Madison Elementary buildings. Head Start is a program
to provide services to preschool children based on income eligibility requirements. The program
serves children from the District and surrounding areas.

Head Start is operated by the GMN Tri-County CAC, which is govemed by an independently
appointed Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is In charge of all budgetary processes for the
CAC. The East Guemnsey Local School District has no control over CAC Board processes, and only
provides space and meals for reimbursement.

ECO-SERRC is a ten-county special education service center which selects its own board, adopis
its own budget and receives direct federal and state grants for its operation. The activity of ECO-
SERRC will not be included as a part of the financial statements.

The East Guernsey Local School District is not involved in the budgeting or management, is not
responsible for any debt and has no influence over these school support crganizations. The activity
of these organizations will not be included as a part of the financial statements.

The District is involved with the Ohio Mid Eastern Regional Educational Service Agency
{OMERESA), the Chic Mid Eastern Regional Educational Service Agency (OMERESA) Health
Benefits Plan self insurance consortium, and the Mid East Ohio Vocational School District
{MEQVSD) which are defined as jointly governed organizations. Additional information conceming
the jointly governed organizations and the public entity pools is presented in Notes 8 and 10.

The financial statements of the School District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing govemmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The Schoaol District aiso applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
statements issued on or before November 30, 1988, to the proprietary funds provided they do not conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The more significant of the School District’'s accounting policies
are described below.

The School District uses funds and account groups to report its financial position and the resuits of
its operations. Funhd accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial
management by segregating fransactions related to certain School District functions or activities.

East Guernsey Local School District ! 15



NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting eniity with a self balancing set of accounts recording
cash and other financial resources, together with all related liabilittes and residual equitles or
balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific
activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special restrictions or limitations., An
account group is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain assets
and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not dlrectly affect net expendable
available resources.

For financial statement presentation purposes, the various funds of the District are grouped into the
following generic fund types under the broad fund categories of governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary. '

Govemmental funds are those through which mosi govemnmentai functions of the Disirict are
financed. The acquisition, use and balanhces of the District's expendable financial resources and the
related current liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary and trust funds) are accounted
for through governmental funds. The following are the District’s governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the operating fund of the Schoo! District and is used o
account for al! financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The general fund balance is avallable to the School District for any purpose, provided ii is
expended or transferred according to the general laws of Ohio.

Speacial Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than expendable trust funds or for major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds - The debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and refated costs.

- The capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources
to be used for the acquisition, renovation or construction of major capital facilities (other than
those financed by proprietary funds or frust funds).

Proprietary funds are used fo account for the School District’s ongoing activities which are simitar
to those found in the private sector. The following are the School District's proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The intent is that the costs
{expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where it has been
decided that pericdic determination of revenues eamed, expenses incurred, and/or net income
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, mahagement controf, accountability or
other purposes.
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NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1998

intemat Service Fund - The internal service fund accounts for the financing of services provided
by one department or agency to other departments or agénciés of the School District on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Non-expendable Trust Funds - The non-expendable trust funds are accounted for in essentially
the same manner as proprietary funds; the principal of the frust must be preserved intact.

EIDUCIARY FUND TYPES:

Fidudiary funds are used to account for assets held by the School D|stnct ina tmstee capac:ty or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These
include expendable trust and agency funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal
liabilities) and do not involve measurement of resulis of operations.

Expendable Trust Funds - The expendable _t_mgt funds are accounted for in essentially the same
manner as the governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Expendable trust funds account for assets where both the principal and interest

may be spent.

Agency Funds - The agency fund is custedial in nature and does not present results of
operations or have a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. This fund is use fo account for assets that the government holds
for others in an agency capacity.

ACCOUNT GRQUPS:

To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific funds and those of general
government, and between long-term liabilities related to specific funds and those of a general nature,
the following account groups are used:

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This account group is established to account for all fixed
assets of the School District, other than those accounted for in the proprietary or trust funds.

General Long-Tem Obligations Accoyunt Groyp - This account group is established to account
for all long-term obligations of the Schoo! District except those accounted for in the proprietary
or trust funds.

B. | j A i

The accounting and financial repoiting treatment applied to a fund are determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental fund fypes and expendable trust funds are accounted for
using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only
current assels and cuirent liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating
statements of these funds present increases {i.e., revenues and other financing sources) in net
cument assets, and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

All proprietary funds and non-expendable trust funds are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated
with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net totai
assets) is segregated into coniributed capital and retained eamings components. Proprietary and
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NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

non-expendable trust fund types operating statements present increases (L.e., revenues) and
decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made. The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for the governmenial,
expendable trust and agency funds. Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting
period when they become both measurable and available. "Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction cah be determined and “available” means collectable within the cutrent fiscal year or
scon enough thereafter fo be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. The available period
for the School District is two months (sixty-two days) after year end.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following
revenue sources are deemed both measurable and available: investment eamings, tuition, grants
and entitlements, and student fees.

The School District reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues
arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for
recognition in the current period. [n the subsequent period, when both revenue recognition criteria
are met, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue
is recognized. Property taxes measurable as of June 30, 1999 and delinquent property taxes,
whose availability is indeterminable and which are intended to finance fiscal year 2000 operations,
have been recorded as defetred revenue.

The measurement focus of govemmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generaily recognized in the accounting
petiod in which the refated fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Principal and interest on general
long-term obligations are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been
accumulated in the debt service fund for payments to be made early in the following year. The costs
of accumulated unpaid vacation and sick [eave are reported as fund liabilities in the period in which
they will be liquidated with available financial resources rather than in the period earmed by
employees. Allocations of costs such as depreciation and amortization are not recognized in the
governmental funds.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized for reporting purposes by the proprietary fund types and
non-expendable trust funds. Revenues are recognized when they are eamed and become
measurable, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred, if measurable. There were no
unbilled service charges receivable at year end. The fair value of donated commodities used during
the year is reported in the operating statement as an expense with a like amount reported as
donated commodities revenue. Unused donated commodities are reported as deferred revenue.

C.  Budgetary Data

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the
preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The documents involved
include the tax budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the appropriation resolution, all
of which are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The certificafe of estimated resources
and the appropriations resolutions are subject to amendment throughout the year with the legal
restriction that appropriations cannot exceed established resources, as ceriified. All funds, other
than agency funds, are legaily required to be budgeted and appropriated. The District budgets

East Guernsey Local School District 18



NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

agency funds as well, but only as a lacal control measure and not for compliance purposes. The
primary level of budgetary control is at the object level within each function. Any budgetary
modifications at this level may only be made by resoclution of the Board of Education.

Tax Budget:

Prior to January 15, the Superintendent and Treasurer submit to the Board of Education a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The budget includes proposed
expenditures and estimated revenues for all funds. A public hearing is advertised and conducted
to obtain taxpayer comments. The express purpose of the budget document is to reflect the need
for existing (or increased) tax rates. By no later than January 20, the Board-adopted budget is
filed with the Guernsey County Budget Commission for rate determination.

Estimated Resources:

Prior to April 1, the Board of Education accepts, by formal resolution, the tax rates as determined
by the Guemsey County Budget Commission and receives the Commission’s certificate of estimated
resources which states the projected revenue of each fund. Prior to June 30, the School District
must revise its budget so that the total contemplated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing
year will not exceed the amount stated in the certificate of estimated resources. The revised budget
then serves as the basis for the appropriation measure. On or about July 1, the cedlificate is
amended to include any unencumbered cash balances from the preceding year. The certificate may
be further amended during the year if projected increases or decreases in revenue are identified by
the School District Treasurer. The amounts reported in the budgetary statement reflect the amounts
in the final amended certificate issued during fiscal year 1989,

Appropriations:

Upon receipt from the County Auditor of an amended certfificate of estimated resources based on
final assessed values and tax rates or a certificate saying no new certificate is necessary, the annual
appropriation resolution must be legally enacted by the Boand of Education at the fund, function, and
object level of expenditures, which are the legal levels of budgetary control. Prior {o the passage
of the annual appropriafion measure, the Board may pass a temporary appropriation measure fo
meet the ordinary expenses of the School District. The appropriation resolution, by fund, must be
within the estimated resources as certified by the County Budget Commission and the total of
expenditures and encumbrances may not excesd the appropriation totals at any level of control.
Any revisions that alter the total of any fund appropriation or alter total function appropriations within
a fund, or alter object appropriations within functions, must be approved by the Board of Education.
The Board may pass supplemental fund appropriations so long as the tolal appropriations by fund
do not exceed the amounis set forth in the most recent certificate of estimated rescurces, During
the year, several supplemental appreopriations were legally enacted; however, none of these
amendments were significant.

The budget figures which appear in the statements of budgetary comparisons represent the final
appropriation amounts, inciuding all supplemental appropriations. Formal budgetary integration is
employed as a management control device during the year for all funds, including the Debt Service
fund, consistent with statutory provisions.
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NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

Encumbrances.

As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of moneys are recarded as the equivalent of expenditures on the non-GAAP hudgetary
hasis in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation and to determine and maintain
legal compliance. On the GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as a
reservation of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures for govemmental funds, and are
reported in the notes to the financial statements for proprietary funds.

Al the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropriation reverts {o the respective
fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future appropriation. Encumbered
appropriations are carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year and are not reappropriated.

D. Cash and Cash Equjvalents .

To improve cash management, all cash received by the Schoal District is pooled in a central bank
account. In addition, the School District has one depository clearing account, which receives
deposits from Quaker Elementary during the month, and is cleared into the central bank account at
the end of each month, Moneys for all funds, including proprietary funds, are maintained in the
depository clearing account, the central bank account, or temporarily used to purchase short term
investments. Individual fund integrity is maintained through School District records. Each fund’s
interest in the pocled bank account is presented as ‘equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents’ on
the balance sheet. During the fiscal year 1999, investments included STAR Chig, Nationai City
Bank Autosweep repurchase accounts and a Certificate of Deposit. Nonparticipating investment
contracts such as repurchase agréements and nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are reported at
cost,

The School District has invesied funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROhio)
during the fiscal year 1999. STAROhio is an investments pool managed by the State Treasurer's
Office which allows governments within the state to pool their funds for investment purposes.
STARChic is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, but does operate in a manner
consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAROhio are
valued at STAROhio's share price which is the price the investment could be sold for on June 30,
1998,

Under existing Ohio statutes, all investment eamings accrue to the general fund except those
specifically related to certain trust funds. The East Guemnsey Local School District distributes
interest to the food service fund, expendable and non-expendable trust funds, public support funds,
activity complex fund and student activity (both special revenue and agency) funds based on fund
balances at the end of each month. The remainder of interest eamed is credited to the general
fund. In addition, the internal service self insurance fund eams and is credited interest by the fiscal
agent. Interest revenue earned by the District in fiscal year 1998 totaled $204,746.

The School District participates in the OMERESA insurance consortium for self insurance. This
resulis in moneys held separate from the School District’s central bank account by the consortium.
These moneys are reflected in the Schoo! District's financial statements as cash and cash
equivalents with fiscal agents. ) '
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NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

For pumoses of the combined staternent of cash flows and for presentation on the combined balance
sheet, investments of the cash management pool and investments with a maturity of three months
or less at the time they are purchased by the School Disfrict are considered fo be cash equivalents.
Investments with an initial maturity of more than three months are reported as investments.

E. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets in the general fund represent cash and cash equivalents whose use is limited by
legal requirements. Resiricted assets may include unexpended revenues restricted for the purchase
of buses, and amounts required by statute to be set aside by the School District for the purchase of
textbooks and instructional materials, for the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital
assets and to create a reserve for budget stabilization. See Note 22 for the calculations of year end
restricted asset balances and the cormesponding fund balance reserves.

F. Inventory

inventories of governmental funds are stated at cost while inventories of proprietary funds are stated
at the lower of cost or market. For all funds, cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis.
Inventory in govemmental funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost
of inventory items is recorded as an expenditure in the govermmental fund types when purchased
and as an expense in the proprietary fund types when used. Reported materials and supplies
inventory is equally offset by a fund balance reserve in the governmental funds which indicates that
it does not constitute available spendable resources even though it is a component of net current
assels. Inventories of proprietary funds consist of donated food, purchased food, and school
supplies held for resale.

G.  Prepaid [fems

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 1999 are recorded
as prepaid items using the consumption method by recording a current asset for the prepaid amount
and reflecting the expenditure/fexpense in the year in which services are consumed.

H. Eixed Assets and Depreciation

General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used fo acquire or construct them. Instead,
capital acquisition and construction costs are reflected as expenditures in govemmental funds, and
related assets are reported in the generaf fixed assets account group. Fixed assets utilized in the
proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund. All fixed assets are capitalized at cost {(or estimated
historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are
recorded at their fair market values as of the date recelved. The Schoo! District maintains a
capitalization threshold of five hundred dollars ($500). The School District does not possess any
infrastructure.

The costs of narmal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend an asset's life are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized. Improvements to fund
fixed assets are depreciated over the useful lives of the related fixed assets, with the length of useful
life as determined by the District’s fixed asset appraisal company, American Appraisal. Assets in
the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. Depreciation of fumniture and equipment
in the proprietary fund types is computed using the straight-line method over an estimated useful
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life of seven to fifteen years.

i Intergovernmental Revenues _——

For governmental funds, intergovermnmental revenues such as grants awarded on a non-
reimbursement basis or entittements, are recorded as receivables and revenues when measurable
and available. Reimbursement type grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when the
related expenditures are incurred. Other than commadities, grants and entitlements of proprietary
fund operations are recognized as nion-operating revenues in the accounting period in which they
are eamed and become measurable. The School District currently participates in several state and
federal programs, categorized as follows:

|1
State Foundation Program

Equify Funds
School Bus Purchase Allowance

Disadvantaged Pupil impact Aid -
State Foundation Program

- " 5 .
Local Professional Development Block Grant
Financial Literacy Grant
Educational Management Information System Grant
SchoolNet Training Grant
Technology Equity Grant
Texthook Subsidy Grant
Eisenhower Grant
Title \i-B
Title |
Title VI-IEP (Chapter 11)

Drug Free Schools Grant
E Rafe Fund
Cu::riculur_[n Improvement Grant

Disability Access Grant
Emergency Repair Grant

General Fund
Driver Education Reimbursement
ia ,
Federal Emergency Management Agency DR1227 Grant
Nationhal School Lunch Program
National School Breakfast Program
Federal Government Donated Commodities

Grants and entitlements accounted for 63.59 percent of the School Disfrict’'s operating revenue
during the 1999 fiscal year.
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J. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles required management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amount reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
K = tf jabilities _

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due from other
funds or due to other funds. Short-term interfund loans are classified as inferfund
receivables/payables.

L. nsate n

The District follows the provisions of GASB Statement 18, ‘Accounting for Compensated Absences’.
Vacation benefits are accrued as a liahility as the benefits are eamed if the employees’ righis fo
receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the
employer will compensate the employees for the henefits through paid time off or some other
means. Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the termination method. The School
District records a liability for accumulated unused sick leave for employees to the extent it is
probable that the benefits will result in termination payments based upon an estimate of past
experience of making termination payments for sick leave.

For governmental funds, the cutrent portion of unpaid compensaied absences is the amount
expected to be paid using expendable availablie resources. This amount is recorded in the account
compensated absences payable in the fund from which the empioyees who have accumulated
unpaid leave are paid. The remainder is reported in the general long-termn obligation account group.
In proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is reported as a fund liability.

M. i ita

Contributed capital represents resources from other funds, other governments and private sources,
provided to the enterprise funds and not subject to repayment. These assets are recorded at their
fair market value on the date contributed. Depreciation on those assets acquired or constructed with
contributed resources is expensed and closed to unreserved retained eamings at year end.

N. Long-term Obligations m—

Long-term obligations are recognized as a liability of a govemmaental fund when due, or when
resowrces have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year.
For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected fo be financed from expendable available
financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The rernaining portion of
such obligation is reported in the general long-terrn obligations account group. Long-term cbligations
expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in that fund.

Under Chio Law, a debt service fund must be created and used for the payment of tax and revenue
anticipation notes. Generally accepted accounting principles require the reporting of the liability in

East Guernsey Local Schoo! District 23



NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

the funds that received the proceeds. To comply with GAAP reporting requirements, the School
District’'s debt service funds have been combined with the appropriate fund. (Those are the ten year
Energy Conservation Bonds.} Debt service fund resources used to pay hoth principal and interest
have alsc been allocated accordingly. That portion of the debt retirement fund used for payment
of General Obligation Bonds is reported in the general long term obligations account group.

0. Interfynd Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions
that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are
properiy applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund
and as reductions of expendituresfexpenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity transfer.
All other interfund lransfers are reported as operating transfers.

P. Fund Balance Reserves

The District reserves those portions of fund equity which are legally segregated for specific future
use or which do not represent available expendable resources and therefore are not available for
appropriations for expenditures. Unreserved fund balance indicates that porticn of fund equity which
is available for appropriation in future periods. Fund equity reserves have been established for
encumbrances, inventories of supplies and materials, property taxes, budget stabilization, and
endowments for non-expendable trust fund contributions that must be kept intact.

The reserve for property taxes represents taxes recognized as revenue under generally accepted
accounting principles but not available for appropriation under State statute. The reservs for budget
stabilization represents money required to be set aside by statute to protect against cyclical changes
in revenues and expenditures. The reserve for endowments signifies the legal restrictions on the
use of principal.

Q. | Pu Fi i

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned “(Memorandum Only)” to
indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not
present financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in canformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. interfund eliminaticns
have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

-RE T N ,__

An adjustment to general fixed assets has resulted in the need for restatement. Although the District
purchased and paid for iwo new school buses in fiscal year 1998, the buses were not reflected in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group in the District’s fiscal year 1898 General Purpose Financial Statements.
General fixed assets have been restated by $107,742 in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. The
heginning balance of general fixed assets increased from $9,421,012 to $9,528,754.
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A Fund Deficits

There were no funds with a deficit balance as of June 30, 1999,

B. Legal Compliance

All funds and accounts were in legal compliance with Ohio Revised Code 5705.41, requiring
appropriations equal to or exceeding expenditures plus encumbrances.

NOTE 5 - BUDGETARY BASIS QF ACCOUNTING - : S

While the School District is reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund balance
and retained eamings on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis
as provided by law is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts,
disbursements and encumbrances. The Combined Statement of Revenues, Expendilures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget vs. Actual (Budgel Basis), Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund
and the Combined Stafement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equily - Budgef vs. Actual
(Budget Basis), Proprietary Fund Types and Non-Expendable Trust Funds are presented on the budgetary
basis to provide a meaningiul compariscn of actual resulis with the budget. The major differences between
the budget basis and GAAP basis are that:

1

2

Revenues are recorded when received in cash {budget basis) as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP basis).

Expenditures/expenses are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when
the liability is incurred (GAAP basis).

Encumbrances are freated as expenditures/expenses for all funds (budget basis) rather than
as a reservation of fund balance for governmental fund types and as note disclosure in the
proprietary fund type (GAAP basis).

For proprietary funds, the acquisition and construction of capital assets are reported on the
operating statement (budget basis) rather than as balance sheet transactions (GAAF basis).

Proceeds from and principal payment on bond and short-term note obligations are reported
on the operating staterment (budget basis) rather than as balance sheet transactions (GAAP
basis).

Principal and interest payments on notes and the corresponding revenues are reporied in
a debt service fund (budget basis} rather than in the fund that received the proceeds (GAAP
basis).
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The following tables summarize the adjustmenis necessary to reconcile the GAAP and budgetary basis

statements by fund type.

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over/{Under) Expenditures for
Govermnmental Fund Types and Similar Trust Funds

GAAP Basis

Net Adjustment for
Revenue Accruals

Net Adjustment for
Expenditure Accruals

Debt Service:

Principal

Interest and Fiscal Charges
Advances - In
Advances - Out

Adjustment for Encumbrances

Budget Basis

General
$ 849,802

(49,848)
105,297
(41,035)
1,538

0
(330,454)

(369,586)
$( 34,486)

Capital Expnd

Special Debt
$25,701 $ 42,450
(30,033) {13,081)
15,859 0
0 0
0 0
10,391 0]
0 0
(50,161) 0
$(28,243) $ 28,369

$200277  $29
(287,376) 0

116,107 0

0

0
320,063 g
0 0
0

(320,825)
$ 28246  $29

Net Income (Loss)/Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses for

Proprietary Funds Types and Similar Trust Funds

GAAP Basis

Met Adjustment for
Revenue Accruals

Net Adjustment for
Expense Accruals

Depreciation Expense
Adjustment for Encumbrances

Budget Basis

East Guernsey Local School District

Enterprise

$ 19,466

(64,119)

42,376
1,380
(3,819)
$ (4,716)

Intemal

. Service

$(88,026)

(10,230)
0

0
$(98,256)

Non-Expendable
Trust
$175

847

$822
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
State statutes require the classification of moneys heid by the School District into three categories.

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the treasury. Such moneys must
be maintained either as cash in the School District Treasury, in commercial accounis payable or
withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market
deposit accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits the Board of Education has identified as not required for use within the
current two year period of designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must be evidenced either by
certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories, or
as savings or deposit accounts including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim meneys are those moneys which are not needed
for immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period of designation of
depositories. Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certfificates of deposit maturing not more than one
year from the date of deposit or by savings or deposit accounts inciuding passbook accounts.

Interim monies may be deposited or invested in the following securities:

1. United States Treasury Notes, Bills, Bonds, or any other obligation or security issued by the
United States Treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and interest by the
United States; :

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal

govermiment agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the Federal National
Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home
Lean Mortgage Corporation, Govemment National Mortgage Association, and Student Loan
Marketing Association. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal
government agencies or instrumentalities;

3 Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market value
of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the
agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the
agreement must not exceed thirty days;

4, Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;
5. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in #1

or #2 of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that
investments in securities described in this division are made only through eligible

institutions;
6. The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAROChIo}); and
7. Certain bankers’ acceptance and commercial paper notes for a period not to exceed 180

days and in an amount not {0 exceed 25 percent of the interim deposits available for
investment at any one time.

East Guernsey L.ocal School District 27



NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

Protection of the School District’s deposits is provided by the federal deposit insurance corperation (FDIC)
as well as eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety company
bonds deposited with the Treasurer by the financial institution or by a single collateral pool established by
the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public moneys deposited with the institution.

Investments in stripped principal o interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and derivatives are
prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling
are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched
to a specific obligation or debt of the School District, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will
be held to maturity.  !nvestments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment
for investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the
Treasurer or, if the securities are not represenied by a ceriificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer
from the custodian.

At June 30, 1999 the District's self insurance internal service fund had a cash balance of $858,814 with
OMERESA Health Benefits Plan, a claims servicing pooi (see discussion under Note 10). The money is held
by the fiscal agent in a pooled account which is representative of numerous member districts and therefore
cannot be classified by risk under GASB Statement 3. The classification of cash and cash equivalents and
investments for the OMERESA. Health Benefits Plan as a whole may be obtained from the fiscal agent, the
Jefferson County Educationat Service Center. To obtain information, write to the Ohio Mid Eastern Regional
Education Service Agency Health Benefits Plan, Bebra Campana, 2023 Sunset Boulevard, Steubenville,
Ohio, 43952, _

The following information classifies deposits and investments by categoties of risk as defined in GASB
Statement No.3 , “Deposits with Financial Instifutions, Investments (including Repurchase Agreements), and
Reverse Repurchase Agreements”.

A Deposits At fiscal year end, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was $(17,508) and the
bank balance was $149,093. Of the bank balance, $144,537 was covered by federal depository
insurance, and $4,558 was uninsured and unccllateralized. Although the securities serving as
callateral were held by the pledging financial institution's trust department, but not in the District’'s
name, and all state statutory requirements for the deposit of money had been followed,
noncompliance with federat requirements could potentially subject the money held in the District's
name to a successful claim by the FDIC.

B. Investments GASB Statement No. 3 requires the School District to categorize investments to give
an indication of the level of risk assurned by the District at fiscal year-end. Category 1 includes
invesiments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the School District
or its agent in the District's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments
which are held by the counter-party’s trust department or agent in the Schoaol District's name.
Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counter-party or by its trust department or agent but not in the Schoot District's name. The School
District's repurchase agreement is classified as Category 3, and had a carrying value and market
value of $128,000 as of June 30, 1999. The District invests in STAROChio which is an unclassified
investment since it is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The
carrying value and market value of the District's STARChio account on June 30 1999 was
$3,036,785.
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The dlassifications of cash and cash equivalents and investments on the combined financial statements are
based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9, “Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Non-
Expendable Trust Funds and governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting”. Cash and cash
equivalents are defined to include investments of the cash management pool and invesiments with maturities
of three months or less at the time of their purchase by the Schoal District. A reconciliation between the
classifications of cash and investments on the combined financial statements and the classifications of
deposits and investments presented above per GASB Statement No. 3 is as follows:

Cash and Cash
GASB Statement 9 $3,102,744 $ 44,537
Investments:
Certificates of Deposit 44 537 {44,537)
Repurchase Agreement (128,000) 128,000
STAROhio 3036789
GASE Statement 3 §_(17.508) $3.164.789
NOTE 7 - PROPERTY TAXES )

Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calendar year basis. Second half distributions ccour in a new
fiscal year. Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility and tangible personal (used
in business) property located in the School District. Real property taxes are levied after April 1 on the
assessed value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. Public utility property taxes attached as a lien
on December 31 of the prior year, were levied April 1 and are collected with real property taxes.

Public utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property at 88 percent of true value (with
certain exceptions) and on real property at 35 percent of true value. Tangible personal property taxes are
levied after April 1 on the value listed as of December 31 of the current year. Tangible personal property
assessments are 25 percent of true value. Assessed values for real property faxes are esfablished by state
law at 35 percent of appraised market value.

All property is required to be revalued every six years. Updates in value may also be processed at three-
year mid-intervals, known as triennial updates. The assessed values upon which the fiscal year 1998 taxes
were collected are: :

1998 Second- 1999 First-
Agricultural/Residential and
ther Real Estate $53,812,360 82.63% $52,411,360 81.59%
Public Utility Personal 8,400,170 12.90 - 8,357,770 13.01
Tangible Personal Property 2913800 __4.47 .. 3465770 540
Total Assessed Values $65.126330 10000%  $64.234900  100.00%
Tax rate per $1,000 of assessed valuation $39.35 $38.95
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Real property taxes are payable annually or semiannually. If paid annually, payment is due February 20;
if paid semiannually, the first payment is due February 20 with the remainder payable by June 20. Under
certain circumstances, state statute permits earlier or later payment dates to be established.

Tangible personal property taxes paid by multi-county taxpayers are due September 20. Single county
taxpayers may pay annually or semiannually. If paid annually, payment is due May 10; if paid semiannually,
the first payment is due April 30, with the remainder payable by September 20.

The East Guemsey Local Schoal District receives property taxes from Guemsey County. The County
Auditor periodically advances to the School District its portion of the tax collected. Second-half real property
tax payments collected by the County by June 30, 1998 are available to finance fiscal year 1999 operations.
The amount available to be advanced can vary based on the date the tax bills are sent.

Accrued properly taxes receivable represent delinquent taxes outstanding and real property, tangible
personal property and public utility taxes which became measurable as of June 30, 1989. Although total
property tax collections for the next fiscal year are measurable, only the amount available as an advance
at June 30 is reflected as a reservation of fund balance. The receivable is therefore offset by a credit to
defemed revenue for that portion not intended to finance current year operations. The amount available as
an advance at June 30, 1899, was $730,285 in the General Fund, $94,668 in the Debt Service Fund and
$11,518 in the Facilities Maintenance Fund. The amount available as an advance at June 30, 1998 was
$696,480 in the General Fund, $81,585 in the Debt Service Fund and $11,655 in the Facilities Maintenance
Fund.

NOTE 8 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 1999 consisted of taxes, accounis (fees and tuition) and intergovernmental grants
and reimbursements. All receivables are considered collectable in full due to the ability to foreclose for the
nonpayrment of taxes, the stable condition of State programs, and the current fiscal year guarantee of federal
funds. A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables appears in the following table.

Intergovernmental Receivables - Amount
General Fund:
Reimbursement - Drivers Education $ 600
Tuition - Other School Districts 3,326
Open Enroliment FY99 13.982
Total General Fund: $ 17,908
Special Revenue Funds:
E Rate Fund:
OMERESA E Rate reimbursements $ 2246
FEMA Fund:
FEMA reimbursements $ 26698
Total Special Revenue Funds: $ 28,944

{continued)

East Guernsey Local School District 30



NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

Capital Projects Funds:
Disabilities Access Grant Fund:

ADA Grant payments from OSFC $ 80,325
Emergency Repair Grant Fund:

Emergency Repair Grant payments

from OSFC $207.051

Food Service Fund:
State/ Federal meals reimbursements $ 22.867

$287,376

Total Intergovernmental Receivables $357.005

= JO0 NI N
Mid East Ohio Vocational School District

The Mid East Ohio Vocational School District (MEOVSD) is a jointly governed organization providing
vocational services to its thifleen member school districts. The MEOVSD is governed by a board of
education consisting of thirteen members appointed by the participating schools. The beard controls the
financial activity of the MEOVSD and reports to the Ohio Department of Education and the Auditor of State.
The continued existence of the MECOVSD is not dependent on the District's continued participation and no
equity interests exist.

id- ional Ed i i en

The District is a patticipant in the Ohio Mid-Eastem Regional Educational Service Agency (OMERESA), a
jointly govemed organization created as a regional council of governments pursuant to state statutes.
OMERESA provides financial accounting services, educaiional management information services,
cooperative purchase services and legal services to member districts. Each member district pays an annual
fee for services provided by OMERESA. OMERESA is governed by a board of directors which is selected
by the member districts. Each district has one vote in all matters, and each member district's control over
budgeting and financing of OMERESA is limited to its voting authority and any representation it may have
on the board of directors. The Jefferson County Educational Service Center serves as the fiscal agent and
receives funding from the State Department of Education. The District paid OMERESA $11,560 for services
provided during the fiscal year. The continued existence of OMERESA is not dependent on the District's
continued participation and ho equity interests exist. OMERESA has ho outstanding debt.

NOTE 10 - PUBLIC ENTITIES POOLS
As mentioned earlier, the District participates in public entity pools that facilitate the acquisition of services

in a cost effective manner by combining administration, financing and other aspects with other public entities
{districts). Those pools are discussed in more detail in the following paragraphs.
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A.  |nsurance Purchasing Pool - C e el N

The District parficipates in the Chio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group
Rating Program (GRP), a workers’ compensation insurance purchasing pool. The GRP’s business
and affairs are conducted by a three-member Board of Directors consisting of the President, the
President-Elect and the Immediate Past President of the Ohio School Boards’ Association (OSBA).
The Executive Director of the OSBA, or his/her designee, serves as the coordinator of the program.
Each year, the participating school districts pay an enrotiment fee to the GRP to cover the costs of
administering the program.

The intent of the GRP is o achieve the benefit of a reduced premium for the School District by virtue
of its grouping and representation with other participants in the GRP. The workers’ compensation
experience of the participating school districts is calculated as one experience and a common
premium rate is applied to all school districts in the GRP. Each participant pays ite workers’
compensation premium to the state based on the rate for the GRP rather than its individual rate.
Total savings are then calculated and each participant's individual performance Is compared to the
overall savings percentage for the GRP, A participant wili then either receive money from or be
required to contribute to the “Equity Pooling Fund®. The equity pooling arrangement insures that
each participant share equally in the overall performance of the GRP. Participation in the GRP is
limited to school disfricts that can meet the GRP's selection criteria. The firm of Gates McDonald
& Co provides administrative, cost control and actuarial services to the GRP, as well as
management of the District's unemployment costs and claims.

B. Claims Servicing Pool

The District belongs to the Ohio Mid Eastern Regiona! Educational Service Agency (OMERESA)
Heailth Benefits Plan, a self insurance poo! comprised of fifty member schoot districts. Each
member district has a voting interest in the pool. The Plan’s business and affairs are conducted by
a nine member Board of Directors elected by the member districts. The OMERESA serves as fiscal
agent for the Pian, and Self Funded Plans, Inc serves as the third party administrator.

NOTE 11 - FIXED ASSETS

A summary of the enterprise fund’s fixed assets at June 30, 1999 follows:
Fumiture and Equipment $152,927
Less: Accumulated depreciation (143,693}
Net Fixed Assets $9.234
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A summary of the changes in generat fixed assets during fiscal year 1969 follows:

Restated Balance Balance
Land $ 72,901 $ 0 $ 0 $ 72801
Land Improvements 381,713 0 0 381,713
Buiidings and Improvements 7,011,346 0 257,040 6,754,308
Construction in Progress 0 34,439 0 34,439
Machinery/Equipment/
Fumiture/Fixtures 981,723 185,721 53,410 1,124,034
Vehicles 1081071 114543 185042 2 . 1010572
Totals $0528.734 $344703 $495492 $9.377.965

The School District does not include textbooks in its fixed assets inventory.

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets, errors and omission, injuries to employees and natural disasters. During fiscal year 1939, the
School District contracted with McElroy Minister Insurance Company for property insurance and hoiler and
machinery coverage. The policies include a $250 deductible for theft, and a $1,000 deductible for property
damage. S

Professional and general liability is protected by the Harcum-Hyre/Nationwide Insurance Company with a
$1,000,000 single occurrence limit and no deductible. Vehicles are covered by Nationwide Insurance
Company and have no deductible for comprehensive and a $250 deductible for coliision. Automobile liability
has a $1,000,000 combined single limit of liability. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial
coverage in any of the past twenty years.

Health and dental coverage are provided on a self-insured basis through Ohio Mid Eastern Regional
Education Service Agency Health Benefits Plan. The third party administrator, Self Funded Pians, Inc
reviews and pays the claims. The School District pays monthly premiums of $480.89 for family coverage
{full rate is $520.84) and $198.86 for individual coverage (full rate is $215.32). Premiums for the dental
coverage are $29.26 monthly for family and $11.65 monthly for single coverage, paid in full by the Board
of Education. Vision insurance is available to employees enrolling in a voluntary steerage PPO. Those
premiums are $17.04 per month for family coverage, $7.62 per month for single coverage and are paid in
full by the Board of Education. Premiums are charged to the same funds that pay the employees’ salaries.

The claims liability of $105,558 reported in the Internal Service fund at June 30, 1999 is based on the

requirements of GASB Statement No.10 which requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including
estimates of costs relating to incurred but not reported claims, be reported. The claims liability is based on
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an estimate supplied by the School District’s third-party administrator, Self Funded Plans, Inc. Changes in
the funds’ claims liability in 1998 and 1999 were:

- DEFINE IT PE | PLANS _ .

A,

Balance at Beginning Current Claims Balance at End

_ OfYear = YearClaims Payments  OfYear
1908 . __$ 84,815 452,079 309,775 $117,119

1999 $ 117,119 534,455 546,016 $105,558

School Employvees Retirement System _

The East Guemnsey Local Scheol District contributes to the School Empioyees Retirement System
of Chio (SERS), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined pension benefit plan administered by the
SERS Retirement Board. SERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and
amend benefits is provided by Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised Code. SERS issues a publicly
available, stand alone financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. The report may be obtained by writing to the SERS, 45 North Fourth Street, Columbus,
Ohio 43215-3634.

Plan members are required {o contribute 9 percent of their annual covered salary and the Schoal
District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 14 percent
of annual covered payroll. A portion of the Scheol District's contribution is used to fund pension
obligations with the remainder being used to fund health care benefits; for fiscal year 1899, 7.7
percent of annual covered salary was the portion used to fund pension obligations. For fiscal year
1998, 9.02 percent was used to fund pension obligations. The contribution requirements of plan
members and employers are established and may be amended, up to statutory maximum amounts,
by the SERS Retirement Board. The District’s contributions for pension obligations to SERS for
the fiscal years ending June 30, 1989, 1998 and 1997 were $118,854, $112,925 and $102,807
respectively; 33.07 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1999 and 100 percent has been
contributed for the fiscal years 1888 and 1997. The unpaid confribution for fiscal year 1989, $79,541
is recorded as a liability within the respective funds and the general long term obligations account
group.

State Teachers Ref S

The East Guermnsey Local School District contributes to the State Teachers Retirement System of
Ohio (STRS), a cost-sharing muitiple employer public employee retirement system administered by
the State Teachers Retirement Board. STRS provides retirernent and disability benefits, annual cost
of living adjustments, and death and survivor benefits to members and beneficiaries. Benefils are
established by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. STRS issues a publicly available, stand
along financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
STRS. The report may be obtained by writing to the STRS, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Chio
43215-3771.
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, plan members were required to contribute 9.3 percent of
their annual covered salary and the District was required to contribute 14 percent; 6 percent was
the porticn used to fund pension obligations for fiscal year 1999. Confribution rates are established
by 8TRS, upon recommendation of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates
of 10 percent for members and 14 percent for employers. The District’s contributions for pension
obligations to STRS for the fiscal years ending June 30, 1899, 1998 and 1997 were $426,782,
$419,592 and $390,252 respectively; 81.72 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1899 and
100 percent has been contributed for the fiscal years 1998 and 1987. The unpaid contribution for
fiscal year 1999, $78,000 is recorded as a liability within the respective funds.

C. Social Security System

Effective July 1, 1991, all compensated persons not otherwise covered by the School Employees
Retirement System or the State Teachers Retirement System have an option to choose Social
Security or the SERS/STRS. As of June 30, 1999, three members of the Board of Education
elected social security; the other two have elected SERS. The Board's liability for those members
electing Social Security is 6.2 percent of wages paid.

NOTE 14 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Comprehensive health care benefits are provided to refired teachers and their dependents through the State
Teachers Retirement System, and to refired classified employees and their dependents through the School
Employees Retirement System. Benefits include hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription drugs and
reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. Benefit provisions and the obligations to contribute are
established hy either system based on authority granted by state statute. Both systems are funded on a pay-
as-you-go basis.

All STRS benefit recipients and sponsored dependents are eligible for health care coverage. The STRS
Board has statutory authority over how much, if any, of the health care costs will be absorbed by STRS.
Most benefit recipients pay a portion of the health care cost in the form of a monthly premium. By Ohio
law, the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds shall be included in the employers’ contribution rate,
currently 14 percent of covered payroll. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1899 the STRS board allocated
empioyer contribufions equal to 8 percent of covered payroll to the Health Care Reserve Fund, from which
payment for health care benefits are paid, an increase of 3.5 percent from fiscal year 1998. For East
Guernsey Local School District this amount equaled $243,876 during the 1999 fiscal year.

STRS pays health care benefits from the Health Care Reserve Fund. The balance in the fund was
$2,156,000,000 at June 30, 1998 (the latest information available). For the year ended June 30, 1998, net
health care costs paid by STRS were $219,224,000 and STRS had 91,999 eligible benefit recipients.

For the SERS, coverage is made available to service retirees with feh or more fiscal years of qualifying
service credit, and to disability and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring on or after August 1, 19898
with less than 25 years of service credit must pay a portion of their premium for health care. The portion is
based on years of service up to a maximum of 75 percent of the premium.

After the allocation for basic benefits, the remainder of the employer’s 14 percent contribution to SERS is

allocated o providing health care benefits. For this fiscal year, employer contributions to fund health care
benefits were 5.3 percent of covered payrall, an increase from 4.98 percent in fiscal year 1998. It addition,
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SERS levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits equal to 14 percent of the difference between a
minirmum pay and the members’ pay, prorated for partial service credit. For fiscal year 1999, the minimum
pay was established as $12,400. For the District, the amount fo fund health care benefits including
surcharge equaled $75,172 for fiscal year 1899,

The surcharge, added to the unallocated paorticn of the 14 percent employer contribution rate, provides for
maintenance of the asset target level for the health care fund. The target level for the health care reserve
is 125 percent of annual health care expenses. Expenses for health care for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1998 (the latest information available) were $111,900,575 and the target level was $139,800,000. At June
30, 1998 SERS had net assets available for payment of health care benefits of $160,300,000. SERS has
approximately 50,000 participants currently receiving health care benefits.

NOTE 15 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - e

The criteria for determining vested vacation and sick leave benefits are derived from negotiated
agreements and state laws. Classified and central office employees, 260-day supervisors and
central office administrators eamn ten to twenty-five days of vacation per year, depending upon
length of service. Accumulated unused vacation time may be paid upon termination of employment.
Teachers, administrators who work less than 260 days per year and classified employees, do not
earn vacation time. :

Teachers, administrators and classified employees earn sick leave at the rate of one and one-fourth
days per month. As of June 30, 1999, sick leave may be accumulated up to a maximum 246 days.
Upon retirernent, certified or classified employees may receive payment for one-fourth of the fotal
sick leave accumulation.

The amount of accumulated vacation and sick leave of employees paid from govemmental funds
that meets the eligibility requirements has been recorded in the appropriate governmentat fund as
a cument liability to the extent that the amounts are expected to be paid using expendable available
financial resources. The balance of the liability is recorded in the general long term obligation
account group. Vacation and sick leave for employees paid from proprietary funds is recorded as
an expense and lability of the fund when eammed. The amount of compensated absences
outstanding at June 30, 1989 for all funds and account groups was $377,036.

B. Other Insurance Options
The School District provides life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment insurance to

all regular employees through Medical Life Insurance Company, in the amount of $20,000; except
that administrative personnel are provided $50,000 coverage.
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The East Guernsey Local Schoo! District has entered into capitalized leases for copying equipment. The
leases are reflected as other financing sources at the net present value of future minimum lease payment,
and as capital outlay in the respective governmental fund type. The leases meet the criteria of a capital
lease set forth in the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13 *Accounting for Leases’, which
defines a capital lease as one which transfers benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee.

Capital lease payments are reflected as debt service expenditures in the general purpose financial statement
for govermmental funds. Equipment acquired for lease has been capitalized in the generaf fixed assets
account group in the amount of $13,503, which is the present value of the future minimum lease payments
at the time of acquisition. A comesponding liability was recorded in the general long term obligation account
group. Principal payment in 1999 totaled $3,965 cash payments. Future lease payments for these capital
leases through the year 2001 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount
2000 _% 5,688
2001 4266 _
Total $ 9,954
Less: Amount of Inferest 1.313
Present Value of Lease Payments: 3. 8841
7-L N

The changes in the School District’s long term obligations during fiscal year 1999 were as follows:

Quistanding Outstanding
Aune 30, 1998  Additions Deletions  June 30, 1999
1992 Series $1,565,217 $ 0 $ 115,000 $ 1,450,217

School Improvement Variable
Interest General Obligation Bonds

Long Term Pension Obligation 54,518 60,101 54,518 60,101
Capital Lease 12,608 0 i 3,965 8,641
Compensated Absences 375,528 _55.195 71520 . 350.203

Total General Long Term Obligations: $2,007.869  $115206  $245003  $1.878.162

The 1882 School Improvement general obligation bonds were used to fund the construction of a new high
school and sewage treatment facility, and the renovations of existing school buildings, as approved by voters
in May 1985. The bonds were issued with variable rates of interest, which range from 5.2 percent to 6.0
percent on bonds outstanding as of June 30, 1998. The issue is being repaid from property taxes.
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The School District has received State Classroom Facilities monies that were being repaid from property tax
collections, with no interest. As a result of legislative changes in 1997, school districts with below average
valuation per pupil partictpating in the building assistance program were eligible io enter a supplemental
agreement with the Ohio School Facflities Commissian. The agreement would afiow the district to retain the
half-mill tax collection locally for the maintenance of classroom fadilities. The District entered info its

agreement in December 1957, and has since begun receipting allocated tax coliections into special revenue
fund 034 (Facilities Mainienance Fund}).

Should the School District’s adjusted valuation per pupil become greater than the state average in the future,
one half of the tax collections would be used to repay the cutstanding lean balance. However, currently the
District ranks 515" in ifs assessed value ranking of 612 schoo! districts in the state. Due fo the District's
assessed value being significantly below the state school district average, the likelihood that the District will
be required to repay its cuistanding classroom facilities loan is remote.

Capital leases will be paid from general fund as discussed in Note 16. The District will pay compensated
balances out of the funds from which employees are paid, as discussed in Note 15,

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the 1992 School improvemend bonds, including interest of
$686,470 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount
2000 184,465
2001 193,032
2002 o 196,075
2003 193,615
2004 189,800
2005-2010 1,159,700
Total Debt Service 32,136,667
- R CTIVITY

As of June 30, 1998, receivables and payables that resulted from interfund transactions were as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Type/Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $330,454 $ 0
Special Revenue Fund:
FEMA 0 10,391
Capital Projects Funds:
ADA Grant 0 84,250
Emergency Repair 0 230813
Total All Funds: $330.454 $330454
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The following table represents note activity in the District during the Fiscal Year 1989 period:

Quistanding Qutstanding

General Fund
Energy Conservation Notes $ 305,000 3 o $ 45,000 $ 260,000

The 1993 Energy Conservation notes were used to fund modifications and renovations of existing school
buildings and installation of energy conservation measures as approved by the East Guernsey Local Board
of Education and the Ohio Department of Education in March 1993. The notes were issued with variable
rates of interest, ranging from 5.1 percent o 5.75 percent on nofes outstanding as of June 30, 198D. As
stipulated by Board reselution, the notes are being repaid from property tax collections. 1t is an integral
assumption of the project that related energy costs will decrease in a sufficient amount to offset the
repayment of the debt over a ten-year period. Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Energy
Conservation Notes, including interest of $38,177 are as follows:

Fiscat Year Ending June 30, Amount
2000 ~_..58027
2001 60,655 T
2002 57.880
2003 _ . 59,980
2004 §1.725
Total Debt Retirement $298.177
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NOTE 20 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
The School District maintains two enterprise funds to account for the operations of food service and a
community education fund. The following table reflects the more significant financial data relating to the
enterprise funds of the East Guernsey Local School District as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1988,

Total
Food Community Enterprise
Service = Education _Funds
Operating Revenues $ 157,401 $0 $ 157,401
Operating Expenses {less depreciation) 319,863 0 316,863
Depreciation Expense 1,380 0 1,380
Operating Income/(Loss) (163,842) V] (163,842)
Donated Commodities 41,252 0 41,252
Interest Eamnings 2,915 0 2,915
Operating Grants 139,141 0 139,141
Net Income/(Loss} 19,466 o 19,466
Net Working Capital 35,681 €662 36,343
Total Assets 89,359 - 90,021
Total Equity $ 44,915 662 $ 45577
Encumbrances
Cutstanding at June 30, 1999 $ 3819 o $ 3,819

TE 21 - YEAR 0 c

The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and other
electronic equipment that may adversely affect the government’s operations as early as fiscal year 1999.

The East Guernsey Local School District has completed an inventory of computer systems and other
electronic equipment that may be affected by the year 2000 issue and that are necessary to conducting
Schootl District operations and has identified such systems as being financial reporting, payroll and employee
benefits, and educational statistics reporting. The School District has five buildings with heating and air
conditioning systems which have extensive efficiency utilization measures within the systems.

The School District uses the State of Ohio Uniform Scheol Accounting System software for its financial
reporting, the State of Ohio Uniform School Payroll System software for its payroll and employee benefits,
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and the State’s Educational Management and Information System for its educational statistics reporting. The
Schoal District utilizes an external service organization for these services. The extemal service organization
and the State are responsible for remediating these systems.

The State of Ohio distributes a substantial sum of money to the School District in the form of “Foundation®
and federal and state grant payments. The State is responsible for remediating this system.

Guemsey County collects property taxes for distribution to the School District. The County is responsible
for remediating their tax colfection systems.

The School District’s heating and air conditioning system is in the validation/testing phase. The School
District has a contingency plan to reasonably assure continued operations should this system not operate
properly.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, ifs effects and the success of related
remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot
assure that the School District is or will be year 2000 ready, that the School District's remediation efforts will
be successful in whole or in parl, or that parties with whom the Schoo! District does business will be year
2000 ready.

22 - CALC ERVES

The School District is required by State statute to annually set aside in the general fund an amount based
on a statutory formula for the purchase of textbooks and other instructional materials and an equal amount
far capital improvements. Amounts not spent by year end or offset by similarly restricted resources received
during the year must be held in cash at year end and carried forward to be used for the same purposes in
future years. The School District is also required to set aside money for budget stabilization. The School
District also receives money designated for school bus purchases, and as of fiscal year 19989 all school hus
purchase money has been expended.

The following cash basis information describes the changes in the year end set aside amounts for textbooks
and instructional materials, capital improvements and budget stabilization. Although the District had offsets
and qualifying disbursements during the year that reduced the set aside amounts below zero, these extra
amounts may not be used to reduce the set aside reguirements of future years. Negative amounis are
therefore not presented as being carried forward to the next fiscal year. Disclosure of this information is
require by State statute.

Textbooks &
instructional Capital
Budget Stabilizati Material
Set Aside Cash Balance June 30, 1998 $ 31,404 $ 0 3 0
Current Year Set Aside Reguirement ~ 43,803 87,206 87,206
Qualifying Offseis During the Year 0] {17,148) {84,682)
Qualifying Expenditures During the Year _ 0 (117.641) 431971
Total: $75007  $(47.583) $(40.873)
Set Aside Cash Balance June 30, 1999 $ 75,007 3 0 $ 0
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23 - ENCIES

Grants: o

The School District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreements and if subject to audits could become a liability of the general
fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not
have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position of the School District at June 30, 1999.

ing Liti

On March 24, 1997 the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain porfions of the Ohio
school funding plan unconstitutional. The Court stayed the effect of its ruling for one year to allow the Ohio
General Assembly to design a plan fo remedy the perceived defects in that system. Declared
unconstitutional was the State’s ‘school foundation prograny’, which provides significant amounts of monetary
support to this District. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the School District received $4,404,192
of school foundation suppert for its general fund, and $4,458,688 in total support (all funds) through the
schoeol foundation program.

The Court also deciared the classroom facilities program for the state of Ohio unconstitutional because, in
the Court's opinion, the program had not been sufficiently funded by the State. The classroom facilities
program provided grant money for repairing and constructing facilities in East Guernsey (see earlier
discussion in Note 17). As of June 30, 1989 the School District had received a total of $2,752,963 under this
program.

Since the Supreme Court ruling, numerous pieces of legislation have been passed by the Ohio General
Assembly in an attempt to address the issues identified by the Court. The Court of Common Please in Perry
County has reviewed the new laws and, in a decision issued on February 25, 1989 determined they are not
sufficiently responsive to the constitutional issues raised under the “thorough and efficient” clause of the Ohio
Consiitution. The State has appealed the decision made by the Court of Common Pleas to the Ohio
Supreme Coutt. As of the date of this report, the Ohio Supreme Court has not rendered an opinion on this
issue. The decision of the Court of Common Pleas in Perry County has been stayed by the Ohio Supreme
Court, and, as such, school districts are sttil operating under the laws that the Common Pleas Court declared
unconstitutional.

As of the date of these financial statements, the School District is unable to determine what effect, if any,
this ongoing litigation will have on its future state funding under these programs and on its financial
operations.

Litigation:
The School District is not party to any pending litigation as of June 30, 1986,
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Federaf Grantor/ Pass Through Federal
Pass Through Grantorf Entity CFDA Non - Cash Non - Cash
Program Title Number Number Receipts Receipts Disbursements  Dishursements
— - R e — e .
U.5. Department of Agrisulture
Passed through Ohic Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster: .
Faod Distribution Program 10.550 30 $41,252 %0 $41,252
School Breakfast Program - - 05-PLRO8 10.557 3414 o 3414 Y
05-PU-89 10.553 20,935 0 20,835 0
National School Lunch Program 0304-PU-98 10.555 14,118 0 14,118 0
0304-PU-99 10.555 70,220 0 70,220 0
Tofal U.S. Department of Agricuffure - Child Nufrition Cluster $108,687 $41,2652 108,687 $41,252
1LS, Depariment of Education
Passed through Ohio Department of Educstion:
Edusationally Deprived Ghildren - Local C1-31-68 84.010 0 0] 28,751 0
Educalional Agencles Title 1 C1-81-88C 84.010 D 0 6,604 0
C1-51-89 T 84010 189,_271 [4] 156,382 [4]
Total Tite | $189,271 $0° 3189837 $0
Education of the Handicapped Titie Vi-B 6B-SF-98P 84.027 0 0 9,272 0
6B-SF-99P 84.027 67,064 0 56,312 0
Total Education of the Handicapped Title VI-B ~ $67.084 50 $65,584 %0
Drug Free Schools Grant DR-51-68 84.186 0 0 208 0
DR-S1-89 84.138 6,474 _ 0 6,066 0
Total Drug Free Schaols Grant $6.474 50 $6,364 $0
Goals 2000 Grant - CIP Gz-82-99 54.276 $5,000 $0 $1,626 $0
Eisenhower Professional Development Grant Title 1) MS-51-88 84.281 0 0 3,006 0
MS-51-99 84.281 8,113 0 1,781 0
Total Eisenhiower Professional Development Grant Titie Il $6,113 $0 $4.757 $0
lnnovative Programs IASA Title VI C2-81-88 84.298 $a 677 $0 $4.677 $0
Total Passed Through Chio Department of Education $778,598 “$0 $272.875 $0
Direct Program:
E Rate r/a 84500 $4,491 $0 $3,908 $0
Total U.S. Depariment of Education $283,090 $0 $276,783 $0
Federal Emergency Management Agency
Passed through Ohlo Depariment of Publlc Safety - Emergency Management Agency $0
Disaster Assistance (FEMA [DR-1227]) n'a 83.544 $780 50 $780 $0
Tolal Federal Emergency Management Agency ) .;’9"-750 0 $780 $0
Total Federal Awards Receipts and Expenditures _ %392 557 $41,.252 $386,250 $41,252
The accompanying Noles to this schedule are an infegral part of this schedule.
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NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Receipts and Expenditures (the Schedule) summarizes

activity of the School District's federal award programs. The Schedule has been prepared on the cash basis
of accounting.

NOTE B - FOOD DISTRIBUTION
Nonmonetary assistancs, such as food received from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, is reportad in the
Schedule at the fair market value of the commeodities received and consumed. Cash receipts from the U.S.

Department of Agriculture are commingled with State grants. 1t is assumed federal monies are expended
first. At June 30, 1999, the School District had no significant food commodities in inventory.
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P . - - 743 East State Street

STATE OF OHIO Athens Mall, Suite B

QOFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Athens, Ohio 45701
o : - : - -Telephone 740-594-3300

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-441-1389

Facsimile 740-594-2110

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL. REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

East Guernsey Local School District
Guernsay County

229 National Road

Old Washington, Ohio 43768

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of East Guemsey Local School District, Guermsey
Countly, (the School District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our repori thereon
dated November 5, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contalned in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

Ag part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School District's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, reqgulations,
coniracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
hot an obiective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings as item 1999-11030-001. We also
noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to management of the East
Guernsegy Local School District in a separate lefter dated November 5, 1999.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School District's internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reperting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the dasign or cperation of cne or more of the internal control components does not reduce
to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control
over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
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East Guernsey Local School District
Guemsey County ) '
Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance and on
internal Control Required by Government Auditing Standards
Page 2

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, Board of Education,
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

November 5, 1999
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STAaTE OF OMIO s ST E 743 East State Street

Athens Mall, Suite B

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR , . Athens, Ohio 45701
Telephone 740-594-3300
| 800-441-1389.

Facsimile 740-394-2110

Jm PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

East Guernsey Lacal School District
Guernsey County

229 National Road

Old Washington, Ohio 43763

To the Board of Education: _ , ,
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of East Guemsey Local School District, Guemsey County, (the School
District) with the types of compliance requirements described In the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance Supplementihat are applicable to its major federal program for the year
ended June 30, 1999. The School District's major federal program is identified in the Summary of Auditor’s
Results Section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable te its major federal program is the responsibility of the School
District’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the School District's compliance based
on our audit. )

We conducted our audit of compliance in accerdance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Crganizations. Thoss standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance occurred with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program. An auditincludes examining, on a test basis, evidence aboutthe School District's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We bslieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinicn. Cur audit doss not
provide a legal determination on the School District’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the School District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 19989.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the School District is responsible for astablishing and maintalhing effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. [n planning and performing our audit, we considered the School District’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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East Guernsey Local School District
Guernsey County
Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance With Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Federal Program and Internal Control Over Compliance
i Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 :
Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal contro! that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicabls requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and granis that would
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not ba detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over compllance and its operauon that we consider to be material
weaknesses. _

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, Board of Education,
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

MNovember 5, 1999
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
JUNE 30, 1989

(d)(1){i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
{d){(1)(iD) Were there any material control weakness No
conditions reported at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?
(dY(1)(ii) Were there any other reportable control No
weakness conditions reported at the
financial statement [evel (GAGAS)?
(2¥(1)(iii) Was there any reported material Yes
noncompliance at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(D(1)(iv) Were there any material internal control No
weakness conditions reported for major
federal programs?
{H{1)(iv) Were there any other reportable internal No
control weakness conditions reported for
major federal programs?
(d(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Unqualified
Opinion
{d){(1){vi} Are there any reportable findings under No
§.5107?
(d)(1){vii) Major Programs {list): Title | - CFDA #84.010
{d)(1 )(vriii) Dollar Threshoid: Type A/B Programs Type A: »$300,000

Type B: all others

(d)(1)(ix)

Low Risk Auditee?

Yes
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
JUNE 30, 1999
(Continued)

~. 2. FINDINGS HELATE
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTE

FINDING NUMBER 1999-11030-001
Finding for Recovery

The Masler Agreement between East Guernsey Teachears Association/OEA/NEA and East Guernsey Local
Board of Education establishes the compensation of the School District’s certified employees. Jill Beskid
was a first year employee with the Schoo) District in fiscal year 1999. For fiscal year 1889, this employee
was paid at 150 hours column/step 5 per the negotiated agreement. However, per her college transcript,
this employee had accumulated 147.3 semester hours which is below the required 150 semester hours.
Therefore, Jill Beskid should have been paid on the Bachelors column/step 5 of the negotiated agreement’s
salary schedule for fiscal year 1999. The difference between 150 hours/step 5 and Bachelors/step 5 was
$1,358. Arecap of the overpayment Is as follows:

Fiscal year 1999 salary paid $27,306
Fiscal year 1999 salary authorized _ 25,948
Fiscal year 1999 overpayment $1,358

The Treasurer has set up a payment pian for Jill Beskid to repay $56.59 per pay for the remaining 24 pay
periods of fiscal year 2000 beginning October 1, 1992 through August 18, 2000. The $56.59 will be
deducted directly from her fiscal year 2000 bi-weekly gross pay.

A tinding for recovery is hereby issued against Jill Beskid, employee of the East Guernsey Local School
District, in the amount of $1,358 and in favor of the East Guernsey Local School District.  As of November
5, 1999, $169.77 has been repaid to the School District.

There were no findings for federal awards.
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .315 (¢)

JUNE 30, 1999

Finding Planned Corrective Anticipated Responsible
Number Action Completion Contact Person
Bate
1999- As a result of inaccurate information provided by | Repayment | Gaye Lodge,
11030- the employee in question, and in response o will be Treasurer
oo inaccurate placement verification by the completed
Guemsey-Monroe-Noble Educational Service as of the
Center (GMNESC(C), the employee was placed pay period
on the wrong salary step for her first year of ending
employment. Upon detection of inaccurate August 18,
placement, two corrective measures werg 2000

immediately made. Firsi, the School District
Treasurer developed a repayment plan to collect
the overpayment from FY 1989 in the FY 2000
payroll year. The Treasurer discussed the plan
with the emplovee, who agreed without B
hesitation. Repayments began in October 1999
and will be completed in August 2000.
Secondly, the Treasurer wili also be more
diligent in verification of hours for placement in
the future.
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STATE OF OHIO

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR _ 743 East State Street
- - Athens Mall, Suite B
Jmv PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE - Athens, Chio 45701

- Telephone 740-594-3300
800-441-1389

Facsimile 740-534-2110

EAST GUERNSEY LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
GUERNSEY COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the Auditor
of State pursuant to Section 117.28, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

Clerk of the Bureau

FEB 03 2000

Date:
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